
FOREST PRESERVE COMMISSION AGENDA -- 1/18/22 at 5:30 PM* 
Rock Island County Building, 1504 3rd Avenue, Rock Island, IL  61201 

The Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission will meet at the above date and time in County Board 

Chambers on the third floor of the County Building, 1504 Third Ave, Rock Island, IL. Per section 7(e) of the 

State of Illinois Open Meetings Act, Members of the County Board may attend the meeting remotely, if 

they prefer. To attend the meeting by Zoom dial 312-626-6799 and entering Meeting ID: 949 386 328 when prompted. 

I. Roll Call:

II. Presentation: 

III. Old Business:
Commission minutes December 21, 2021** pg 2

IV. Public comment:

V. President’s Comments

Niabi Zoo Fund claims @ $73,922.02 pg 24
Marvin Martin Fund claims @ $3,222.78 pg 37

VI. Claims:**
Forest Preserve General Fund claims @ $60,220.03 pg 14
Liability Fund claims @ $1,688.00 pg 36
Treasurer’s Disbursements @ $1,569.28 pg 38

Claims and Treasurer’s Disbursements totaling $140,622.11 

VII. Transfers
Consider Transfers of Appropriations in the General Fund** pg 39

VIII. Resolutions
Consider a resolution regarding the semi-annual review of closed session minutes** pg 40

IX. Ordinance

X. Other New Business:
Dennhardt Land Purchase Agreement

XI. Comments from Commissioners

XII. Reports:   Approval of all routine reports:
District Budget Performance Report** pg 42 
April Palmer – Auditor’s Reports** pg 63 
Mike Petersen - Illiniwek report** pg 73 
Lee Jackson – Niabi Zoo report ** pg 76

Louisa Ewert – Treasurer’s Report** pg 55
Todd Collins pg 69 & Jay Verstraete pg 72 – Indian Bluff report ** 

Ben Mills – Loud Thunder report** pg 74
Jeff Craver – Director’s report** pg 81

Recess 
The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Commission will be held at the Rock Island County Building, 1504 3rd Ave, Rock Island, 

Illinois 61201 on Tuesday, February 15th 5:30 PM following the meeting of the Rock Island County Board of Supervisors meeting. 

*The Forest Preserve Commission will begin immediately following the meeting of the Rock Island County Board

**Items in Commissioners packets can be viewed online at the District’s website www.ricfpd.org

CS  -  Posted 1/14/2022

01

http://www.ricfpd.org/


 

ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE COMMISSION 
DECEMBER 21, 2021 – 6:55 PM 

PRESIDENT KAI SWANSON PRESIDING 
 

1. Karen Kinney, County Clerk, called the roll:  (Record) 
  

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, K. Swanson,                      
L. Thompson, B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 
TOTAL PRESENT 24 

  
 D. Clevenger,  
 TOTAL ABSENT      1    
 
2. President Swanson informed Commissioners that the Presentation of the 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2021 Audit by RSM US, LLP 
will be presented at the next meeting on January 18, 2022. 

 
3. Commissioner Adams moved to approve the November 16, 2021, Forest Preserve 

Commission meeting minutes, as presented.  Commissioner Vyncke seconded. 
 

A roll call vote was taken. 
 
D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
  
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  (None) (Three calls were made to the public.) 

 
5. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS:   
 
 President Swanson stated, “Friends behold I bring you glad tidings of great joy.  It is 

with tremendous excitement I am able to report a project that this Commission, 
more importantly of the staff of the District have been working diligently on.  
Yesterday the East Moline City Council with a 5 – 2 vote, grave its concurrence to 
the project to acceptance of the One Million Dollar Grant ($1,000,000.00) from the 
Clean Energy Foundation.  Will create 180 acres protected old growth Forest Land 
in our County and establish a new Forest Preserve.  So as Commissioners, I want to 
congratulate for your diligence and thank you for service and leadership.  Pat 

02



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  2 

 

yourselves on the back, we have ourselves a new Forest Preserve.   Shout out to 
Commissioner Normoyle who came to the City of East Moline meeting last night.  
Mr. Craver that has been our guide throughout this process, by I’s dotting and t’s to 
crossing but I want to thank you for your role.        

 
 Jeff Craver was recognized to speak.  Mr. Carver stated that now the real work 

begins.   
 
 President Swanson restated, now the real works begins.  Just a reminder for those 

of you that might hear questions from the community.  Jeff, Mike and Ben the 
professional leadership of the District forged an amazing partnership with groups 
like Friends of Off-Road Cycling, River Action, Living Lands and Water.  We would 
not be where we are without Chad Pregracke right now.  These partnerships 
enable us to develop park land in a way preserve in a pristine condition yet but 
grant appropriate access for those of us that like to hike, mountain bike and all 
that kind of stuff.  Yes, the hard work begins now.  But it is going to be fun to watch.  
I am quite proud of that.    

 
6. Commissioner McNeil moved to approve the Claims and Forest Preserve 

Treasurer’s Disbursements in the amount of $744,808.45, as presented.  
Commissioners L. Moreno and Cremeens seconded. 

 
 Commissioner Sowards moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  

Commissioner Adams seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
6. Commissioner Normoyle moved to waive the reading and approve the FY 2022 

Transfers of Appropriation in the General Fund, as presented.  Commissioner 
Enburg seconded. 

 

 Commissioner M. Moreno moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  
Commissioner Sowards seconded. 

 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

03



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  3 

 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
8.  Commissioner Thompson moved to waive the reading and approve the Resolution 

regarding Niabi Zoo Fund FY22 appropriation amendments – Rhino Yard Project, as 
presented.  Commissioner L. Moreno seconded. 

 
 RESOLUTION 

RE: Fiscal Year 2022 Niabi Zoo Fund Appropriation Amendments for Rhino Yard Project 
 

 WHEREAS, Niabi Zoo acquired one white rhino in the spring of 2021, and   
 
 WHEREAS, the zoo intends to acquire additional white rhinos in the future, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the white rhino exhibit requires modifications to house and display 
additional white rhinos, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Niabi Zoo Foundation has raised funds to given to pay for the 
exhibit modifications, and   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Forest Preserve Commission of 
Rock Island County, Rock Island, Illinois, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  An emergency exists as outlived above.  
 
SECTION 2.  Revenues in the amount of $29,367.00 shall be increased from the Niabi 
Zoo Fund #131 to the following:  
 
AMOUNT      APPROPRIATION  DESCRIPTION 
$29,367.00  131-32 364.10  Contributions from Private Sources  
  
 
SECTION 3.  Expenditures in the amount of $29,367.00 shall be increased from the Niabi Zoo 
Fund #131 to the following:  
 
AMOUNT     APPROPRIATION  DESCRIPTION 
$29,367.00  131-32-08 767.00  Infrastructure over $15,000.00   
   
  
SECTION 4.  This resolution to become effective immediately. 
 
 

04



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  4 

 

 ADOPTED by the Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission, Rock Island 
County, Illinois, this 21st day of December, 2021. 

 
 Commissioner Adams moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  Commissioner 

Deppe seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
9. Commissioner Deppe moved to waive the reading and approve the Resolution 

regarding the Designation of Banks and Other Depositories, as presented. 
Commissioner L. Moreno seconded. 

 
      Resolution 

Rock Island County Forest Preserve District 
Re: Designation of Banks or other Depositories 

 
 WHEREAS, Louisa A. Ewert, County Collector and County Treasurer, of the County of Rock 
Island, State of Illinois, and being appointed Treasurer, of the Rock Island County Forest Preserve 
District by the Board of Forest Preserve Commissioners of the County of Rock Island, State of 
Illinois has pursuant to the terms of an Act of the General Assembly of the State of Illinois, 70 ILCS 
805/8b, requested this Board of Forest Preserve Commissioners of Rock Island County to 
designate a Bank or Banks or other Depository in which the Funds and Public Monies in the 
custody of the County Treasurer and monies received by her in the collection of taxes may be 
kept, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the following designated banks have furnished copies of the sworn Statements 
of Resources and Liabilities, as furnished to the Comptroller of currency or to the Commissioner of 
Banks and Trust Companies of Illinois. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF FOREST PRESERVE 
COMMISSIONERS OF ROCK ISLAND COUNTY, aforesaid, that the following named Banks are 
hereby designated as Depositories in which the funds and monies received by Louisa A. Ewert, 
County Collector and County Treasurer and in the collection of taxes may be deposited to-wit: 
 
 Bank of Orion; Moline, Illinois 
 US Bank; Rock Island, Illinois  
 Quad City Bank and Trust; Moline, Illinois 

05



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  5 

 

 First Midwest Bank; Moline, Illinois 
 Clock Tower Community Bank: Hillsdale, Illinois 
 Peoples National Bank (fka Reynolds State Bank); Reynolds, Illinois 
 CBI Bank & Trust; Buffalo Prairie, Illinois  
 SENB; Moline, Illinois 
 Blackhawk State Bank & Trust; Milan, Illinois 
 American Bank of Rock Island; Rock Island, Illinois 
 First National Bank; Moline, Illinois 
 Midwest Bank; Andalusia, Illinois 
 Kone Employees Credit Union; Moline, Illinois 
 Moline Municipal Credit Union; Moline, Illinois 
 QC Postal Credit Union; Moline, Illinois 

Service Plus Credit Union; Moline, Illinois 
DuTrac Community Credit Union; Moline, Illinois 
Commerce Bank, Kansas City, Missouri 
PFM Asset Management LLC, Chicago, Illinois 
IMET, Dublin, Ohio 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that each bank herein designated as a depository for such 
funds or monies shall furnish the said Board of Forest Preserve Commissioners of Rock Island 
County with a copy of all Statements of Resources and Liabilities which it is required to furnish to 
the said Comptroller of Currency or Director of Financial Institutions of the State of Illinois while 
acting as such Depository and, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if such funds and monies are deposited in a bank herein 
designated, as Depository, the amounts of such deposits shall not exceed sixty-five (65%) of the 
Capital Stock and Surplus of such Bank and such County Treasurer shall not be discharged from 
responsibility for any such funds or monies deposited in any bank in excess of such limitation. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF FOREST PRESERVE COMMISSIONERS OF ROCK ISLAND 
COUNTY, ROCK ISLAND, ILLINOIS, this 21st day of December, 2021. 

 
 Commissioner L. Burns moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  Commissioner 

Deppe seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 

06



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  6 

 

10. Commissioner L. Moreno moved to approve the 2022 Forest Preserve Meeting and 
Holiday Schedule, as amended.    

 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates for the Rock Island County Forest 
Preserve District and Forest Preserve Executive Committee meetings 

for the calendar year 2022 pursuant to the Open Meetings Act  
 
Pursuant to  Section 2.03 of the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/2.03, the Rock Island 
County Forest Preserve District has prepared and makes available this Schedule of 
Regular Meeting Dates for the calendar year of 2022.  The Rock Island County Forest 
Preserve District may schedule other special meetings, emergency meetings, and 
reconvened meetings as deemed necessary and as allowed by law pursuant to Section 
2.02 of the Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120/2.02, in addition to any amendments or other 
modifications to the regular meeting date schedule.  All regular meetings unless otherwise 
notified shall take place at 5:30 PM in the Rock Island County Chambers in the Rock 
Island County Building, 1504 3rd Avenue, Rock Island, Illinois, immediately following the 
meeting of the Rock Island County Board of Supervisors as follows:  
 
 

January 18     July 19  
February 15      August 16 
March 15     September 20  
April 19     October 18 
May 17     November 15 
June 21     December 20  

 
The Forest Preserve Executive Committee will meet at 8:30 AM in the Rock Island County 
Chambers in the Rock Island County Building, 1504 3rd Avenue, Rock Island, Illinois 
unless otherwise noted.  
 
 

January 11 
February 8 
March 8  
April 12 
May 10 
June 14-Niabi Zoo, 13010 Niabi Zoo Road, Coal Valley, IL 61240 
July 12-Indian Bluff Golf Course, 6200 78th Avenue, Milan, IL 61284 
August 9-Loud Thunder Forest Preserve, 19406 Loud Thunder Road, Illinois City, 
IL  61259 
September 13-Illiniwek Forest Preserve, 836 State Avenue, Hampton, IL  61256 
October 11 
November 8  
December 13  
 

07



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  7 

 

These schedules of regular meeting dates as adopted pursuant to a vote of the Forest 
Preserve Commission, of the Rock Island County Forest Preserve District, at the regular 
meeting on December 21, 2021. 

 
Commissioner L. Moreno amended the following meetings as follows, November 
15, 2022 Meeting moved to November 22, 2022.  Executive Committee from 
October 11, 2022 moved to October 12, 2022 and November 8, 2022 moved to 
November 15, 2022.    Commissioner Cremeens seconded. 

 
 Commissioner Thompson moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  

Commissioner L. Moreno seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 

Commissioner Adams moved to approve the 2022 Forest Preserve Meeting and 
Holiday Schedule, as amended.   Commissioner Vyncke seconded. 

 
Commissioner Normoyle moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  
Commissioner Thompson seconded. 

 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
11. Commissioner Normoyle moved to approve Jeffrey Craver, Director, as the 

District’s FOIA Officer for Calendar Year 2022, as presented.  Commissioner McNeil 
seconded. 

 
 Commissioner Vyncke moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  Commissioner 

Sowards seconded. 
 

08



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  8 

 

 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
12. Commissioner Cremeens moved to approve the 2022 Fee Schedule of the District 

Facilities and Services, as presented.  Commissioner Brunk seconded.   
 
 Commissioner L. Burns moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  Commissioner 

Adams seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
13. Commissioner L. Moreno moved to approve Crawford & Company bid for Niabi 

Zoo Rhino Yard Project at $29,367.00, as presented.  Commissioners Brunk and 
Cremeens seconded. 

 
Commissioner Vyncke moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  Commissioner 
Sowards seconded. 

 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 

09



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  9 

 

 
 
14. Commissioner Adams moved to approve Tyler Technologies quote for additional 

Financial Software and Maintenances, as presented.  Commissioner Vyncke 
seconded. 

 
Commissioner L. Moreno moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  
Commissioner Thompson seconded. 

 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
    
15. Commissioner Deppe moved to approve the Conservation Fund Recipient 

Agreement with Enbridge Flanagan South Pipeline Project, as presented.  
Commissioner L. Moreno seconded. 

 
 Commissioner Morthland was recognized. 
 
 Commissioner Morthland asked if he would elaborate a little bit.  Is this the new 

horse trailer? 
 
 President Swanson stated no.  Thank you Commissioner Morthland.  Some years 

back there was a Legal Settlement that created a fund for lands that were 
displaced.  Wild Lands that were displaced by the Enbridge Flanagan South 
Pipeline Project.  Those funds can be used for restoration projects.  Mr. Craver do 
you want to say anything about this specific project?   

 
 Mr. Craver was recognized. 
 
 Mr. Craver stated that the funds were administered through the Pipeline Project.  

These funds were given to the Conservation Fund.  The Conservation Fund works 
with US Fish and Wildlife Service dispersing those to funds projects.  We have been 
awarded at minimum $75,000.00.  As you can see there is a red line draft of the 
agreement in there.  There is a bubble note that the minimum amount awarded to 
be $75,000.00.  I do not believe there will be any other material or material 
changes other than finalizing that dollar amount upon your approval here.  These 
funds will used to help with the acquisition of the New Forest Preserve.   

10



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  10 

 

President Swanson stated that you know that majority of the cost of the new 
acquisition will come from the Clean Air Foundation but there was a matching 
component.  As what Mr. Craver has pointed out in the past usually means Grant 
Funds it is about they put up 60% and we have to come up with the rest.  This one is 
extraordinary that 80% of the total project cost is coming from the Grant.  Leaving 
much less that we have to come up with.  President Swanson asked Commissioner 
Morthland if that answered his question.   
 
Commissioner Morthland said that answered that question.  Another question how 
is the location chosen?   
 
President Swanson stated so the location was kind of chosen by the sellers.  The 
sellers have been trying for years to get development interest on those particular 
parcels.  Failing that over a number many years they opened themselves to the 
possibility making it a …. Actually they were advised by one of the appraisers the 
highest and best use would be as public lands.  Probably there is not enough 
funding to turn into a more Urban Park given the size of it, so we are grateful that 
the sellers were open to the idea to discussing with the Forest Preserve District the 
possibility of acquisition.  That is what got the ball rolling, then Mr. Craver and his 
team had to find ways of acquiring the land and at a price that would satisfy the 
sellers.  Then that is where we were tremendously fortunate but also the 
beneficiaries of the hard-diligent work of professional staff.  Being able to obtain 
access to One Million Dollar Grant ($1,000,000.00) and leverage other funds that 
due to the careful fiscal management of the District Finances by Mr. Craver and 
his team, we were able to access funds like this Pipeline Project settlement.   
 
Commissioner Morthland stated that it does seem to appear like we are sweeping 
it as rescuer of a whole bunch of parcels.  Please persuade my concern about 
that.   
 
President Swanson stated I would share your concern if there was nothing 
redeeming about the parcel.  However, we have been given understand by 
naturalist of a scope and a stature that of Chad Pregracke plus our own arborists 
Mike Peterson and others that we will find tree specimens on these two properties 
that you simply will not find anywhere else in Illinois, in the wild.  There is 
astonishingly old hickory and oak here.  This is also a habitat that is very 
commensurate that we have seen at Illiniwek.  As you know, thanks to Mike 
Peterson careful stewardship we have attracted four endangered or threatened 
species back to Rock Island County thanks to that management.  Two species that 
have not been seen in Rock Island County for generations.  They are not 
threatened but they are coming back.  So, our intent would be first part of our 
Mission Statement of the Forest Preserve District is to Conserve is to create these 
parcels or steward these parcels in a way we have done at Illiniwek, so we can 
pass this along as a legacy to our grandchildren and future generations.  So, 
address your questions specifically if that was not the outcome I would not support 

11



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  11 

 

this either.  That is the likely outcome.  That Conservation would be the highest and 
best purpose of this land.  There is no better steward of Conservation, I can think of 
in Rock Island County then the Rock Island Forest Preserve District.   
 
Commissioner Morthland said Thank you President Swanson.   
 
President Swanson asked if there was any other questions or discussions.       

   
 Commissioner Normoyle moved to approve the previous roll call vote.  

Commissioner M. Moreno seconded. 
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  22 

  
 J.R. Westpfahl 
 TOTAL NO       1 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
16. Comments from Commissioners: 
 
 Commissioner Vyncke was recognized.  Commissioner Vyncke stated that he 

wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  I would like to also 
recognize the efforts put forth by the staff in the County Office Building for the 
awesome decorating that they have done.  I know that there is a completion 
going on there.  Thank you for decorations.  It is nice to see them all.   

 
 Commissioner Deppe was recognized.  Commissioner Deppe stated he could not 

say it better. 
 
 Commissioner L. Moreno was recognized.  Commissioner L. Moreno stated Merry 

Christmas and Happy Festivus and a big airing of grievences for the rest of us. 
 
 President Swanson stated that here is announcement that could be made by 

someone else.  Thank you to Commissioner Simmer and Commissioner M. Moreno 
that those cookies were not brought specifically for the County Board Meeting.  I 
am sorry Chairman those were specifically for the Forest Preserve Commission I 
hope you have all had a chance to enjoy them.  So, thank you so very much.   

 
 County Clerk Karen Kinney was recognized.  Ms. Kinney stated that the Recorder’s 

Office was declared the winner of the decorating.  Ms. Kinney wished everyone a 
Merry Christmas.   

12



ROCK ISLAND COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE 
11-16-2021   PAGE  12 

 

17. Commissioner Adams moved to approve all Routine Reports from the Director and 
Departments Heads of the Forest Preserve Commission, as  presented.  
Commissioner L. Burns seconded. 

 
 A roll call vote was taken.   
 

D. Adams, D. Beck, K. Bogdonas, L. Boswell-Loftin, R. Brunk, L. Burns, M. Burns,         
D. Cremeens, J. Deppe, C. Enburg, E. Langdon, P. McNeil, D. Mielke, L. Moreno,           
M. Moreno, R. Morthland, A. Normoyle, R. Simmer, E. Sowards, L. Thompson,            
B. Vyncke, J.R. Westpfahl, J. Woods 

 
TOTAL YES  23 

  
 TOTAL NO       0 
 
 Motion carried. 
 
 The next meeting of the Forest Preserve Commission is Tuesday, January 18, 2021, 

at 5:30pm, immediately following the meeting of the Rock Island County Board. 
 

President Swanson declared the Forest Preserve Meeting recessed.   
 
      RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,    

 
      KAREN KINNEY 
      COUNTY CLERK AND SECRETARY 

       OF THE FOREST PRESERVE COMMISSION 
 
KK:wlrb  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 Resolution  
 Rock Island County Forest Preserve District 
 Re: Open Meetings Act Review of Minutes of a Meeting Lawfully Closed  
 

WHEREAS, the Rock Island County Forest Preserve Commission strictly adheres to all 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act as defined in 5 ILCS 120; and 
 

WHEREAS, 5 ILCS 120/2.06(c), calls for periodic review of minutes of meetings lawfully 
closed to determine if the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of these minutes or 
that the minutes or portions therefor no longer require confidential treatment and are available 
for public inspection; and 
 

WHEREAS, during regular committee meetings held during the month of January, 2020; 
Rock Island County Forest Preserve has reviewed minutes of closed meetings for all previously 
held closed sessions. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following meeting minutes have been 
determined to contain matters where the need for confidentiality still exists: 
 

Date of Meeting     Reason for Closed Session 
 08-08-1986      Personnel 
 12-05-1986      Personnel 
 02-08-1991      Personnel & Potential Liability 
 07-10-1992      Personnel 
 02-05-1993      Investments contracts 
 05-07-1993      Personnel 
 08-15-1995      Personnel 
 08-05-2005      Litigation 
 09-30-2010      Personnel 
 10-08-2010      Personnel 
 12-03-2010      Personnel 
 03-04-2011      Personnel 
 04-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-05-2012      Personnel 
 06-07-2012      Personnel 
 06-08-2012      Personnel 
 06-27-2012      Personnel 
 06-28-2012      Personnel 
 10-15-2012      Litigation & Personnel 
 07-11-2013      Personnel 
 09-12-2013      Litigation 
 11-14-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 12-12-2013      Litigation & Personnel 
 01-16-2014      Litigation 
 11-13-2014      Personnel 
 02-11-2015      Personnel 

04-16-2015      Personnel 
10-14-2015      Personnel 
11-10-2015      Personnel 
02-16-2016      Potential Litigation 
03-17-2016      Personnel 
04-12-2016      Personnel 

40



06-15-2016      Litigation 
01-10-2017      Litigation 
04-11-2017      Litigation 

 01-09-2018      Personnel 
 11-13-2018      Personnel & Land Acquisition 
 02-11-2020      Personnel 
 12-15-2020      Litigation 
 07-13-2021      Land Acquisition 
 07-20-2021      Land Acquisition 
 10-13-2021      Negotiations 
  

This Resolution to become effective immediately after passage.  Minutes of those meetings 
determined to be made available for public inspection will be released as per the Open Meetings 
Act 5 ILCS 120/2.06(b). 
 
 DONE IN OPEN MEETING THIS 18th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022 
 
 
 
                                                                                                              
Kai Swanson       Karen Kinney 
President, Rock Island County     Secretary, Rock Island County 
Forest Preserve Commission    Forest Preserve Commission 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



12
/3

1/
20

21

Fu
nd

 #
Fu

nd
 N

am
e

C
as

h
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
C

la
im

s
C

as
h 

Ba
la

nc
e

13
0

G
en

er
al

2,
59

0.
53

   
   

1,
65

9,
00

0.
00

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
,2

20
.0

3
   

 
1,

60
1,

37
0.

50
   

   
   

   
 

13
1

Zo
o

14
,6

90
.5

2
   

 
47

3,
00

0.
00

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
73

,9
22

.0
2

   
 

41
3,

76
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

2
FP

 R
et

ire
29

9.
56

   
   

   
16

5,
00

0.
00

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
16

5,
29

9.
56

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
3

FP
 L

ia
b

15
5.

88
   

   
   

32
7,

00
0.

00
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
68

8.
00

   
   

32
5,

46
7.

88
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

6
FP

 F
IS

SA
52

0.
70

   
   

   
17

0,
00

0.
00

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
17

0,
52

0.
70

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
0

Bi
ke

 P
at

h
77

3.
36

   
   

   
95

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

95
,7

73
.3

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

1
G

ol
f C

or
se

 Im
p

94
2.

94
   

   
   

12
6,

00
0.

00
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

12
6,

94
2.

94
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

5
D

ev
.-F

or
es

t&
C

on
st

.
71

.7
3

   
   

   
  

70
1,

00
0.

00
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

70
1,

07
1.

73
   

   
   

   
   

 
33

6
LT

 S
pi

llw
ay

&C
am

p
38

2.
76

   
   

   
20

2,
00

0.
00

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
20

2,
38

2.
76

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
8

M
ar

vi
n 

M
ar

tin
 F

un
d

88
7.

27
   

   
   

10
1,

00
0.

00
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
22

2.
78

   
   

98
,6

64
.4

9
   

   
   

   
   

   

R
oc

k 
Is

la
nd

 C
ou

nt
y

Fo
re

st
 P

re
se

rv
e 

Fu
nd

s
C

as
h 

B
al

an
ce

s

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



Report to Forest Preserve Committee 

Name of Park __Loud Thunder __ 

For the Month of _December 2021__ 

Grounds Maintenance performed--_ 

 Picked up trash on grounds, removed trash from trash receptacles

 Cleaned pit toilets as needed

 Pruned trees in all areas of the preserve

 Continued to removed hazard trees in Indian Meadow Campground

 Maintained trails

 Finished installation of trail bridge near boyscout camp

 Burned 5 acre prairie and reseeded it at the Ralph Martin Conservation Area

Building Maintenance projects performed--_ 

 Cleaned grease trap in park office

 Dusted and cleaned all wood surfaces in park office

Equipment repairs and/or project performed--_ 

 Preformed pre and post operation checks daily on equipment to be used.

 Installed a new tailgate for 2014 F150

 Replaced spark plug wire and throttle spring on log splitter

 Began winter maintenance on Bobcat T870

o Oil and Filter change

o New seal on door

o Coolant change

Trails/Course/General facility conditions--_The park as a whole is looking great.  Trails were open for 

the majority of the month.  

Vandalism report--_I have no vandalism to report for the month of December 2021. 

Incidents--_Over the Christmas break someone tried to sink a stolen SUV at the public boat ramp.  

Rusty’s Towing pulled the vehicle out of the lake and removed it from the property.  

Accidents reports--_I have no accidents to report for the month of December 2021.  

Weather conditions--_Weather was unseasonably warm and dry for December.    

74



 

 

 

 

 

 

Activities/Events/Outings held at park--_ The Loud Thunder Archery Hunt is still going on and to date 

the hunters have harvested 32 deer.   

Volunteer Hours—I do not have any volunteer hours to report for the month of December 2021.    

 

December was a productive month here at Loud Thunder.  We have begun to work on equipment 

maintenance in the shop and removal of hazard trees out on the grounds.  Staff took some time off around 

the holidays and we are back to full strength now that the holidays are over.   

 

We have a lot of equipment to perform annual maintenance on and even more to do on the grounds the 

rest of this winter.  Staff will be very busy in the upcoming months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ben Mills Superintendent       1/07/22 

 

 

 

75



Forest preserve committee report for December 2021 

1/4/2022 

Prepared by Lee Jackson 

Administrative 

 Updated seasonal handbook 

 Began discussions with potential concessionaire 

 Met with Foundation leadership to discuss potential foundation events in 2022. 

 Met with Black Hawk Bank Manager to discuss the possibility of Black Hawk managing 

Foundation accounts. 

 Joel Vanderbush has been appointed to the role of “special advisor” of the “Bison Bridge 

Project”. Joel also serves on the boards of BICAN, and the Quad Cities Earth Coalition. 

 Tammy Schmidt has been appointed to the IUCN (International Union for Conservation of 

Nature) Otter specialist group for a second 4-year term. Tammy is co-chair of the IUCN “Otters 

in Zoos task force”; an international consortium of zoo biologist that help coordinate 

conservation and best husbandry practices for otter species in zoos globally. 

 Tammy Schmidt is serving as a member of the ZAA (Zoological Association of America) animal 

welfare Committee. 

Collections 

 10 Enrichment volunteers logged 167 hours 

 25 Praying Mantid nymphs emerged 

 1.1Fennec Fox (new SSP breeding pair) cleared quarantine, will begin intros after the 1st 

 Accessioned 0.2 Ostrich into quarantine  

 

Facilities   

  Rebuilt brakes on new dump truck. 

 Repaired door at Bactrian Camel. 

 Repaired gate at Bactrian Camels. 

 Rebuilt rear brakes and changed oil/filter on pickup truck #148. 

 Changed out feeder cable in the night stall of the Giraffe barn. 

 Replaced furnace filters throughout the zoo. 

 Inspected all fire extinguishers. 

 Installed wind breaks on the Eagle Owl exhibit. 

 Installed 4 new tires, changed oil/filter, air filter, fuel filter, and spark plugs on gator #71. 

 Repaired door in Pallas Cats. 

 Had contractor install a hose bib in the Bactrian Camel barn. 

 Painted doors at the red restroom. 

 Had contractor replace Inducer motor on Biodiversity furnace. 

 Installed new front tire, changed oil/filter, air filter, fuel filter, spark plugs and repaired drive 
clutch on Gator #3. 

 Snow removal. 

76



 Repaired gate at Ostrich barn. 

 Built box for Wolves to have pups in. 

 Had contractor Install new door closers on four doors at the gift shop.  Replaced door knob at 
Colobus. 

 Built nesting box for Amur Leopards. 

 Had contractor run electric over to Binturong exhibit. 

 Had contractor install hose bib at Binturong exhibit. 
 
 

 
 
FRONT GIFT SHOP: 

 Making orders for 2022 

 Shipments coming in for 2022- Tagging and setting up the merchandise 

 Wood Ornaments- sold 30 ornaments/$347 

 Holiday Gift Bag-sold 6 bags/$321 
 
FRONT CONCESSIONS: 

 Talking about possible opportunities for 2022 

 Winterized concession stands 

NZ MEMBERSHIP/ FUNBUNDLE MEMBERSHIP/ZOOSEUM SEASONAL PASS: 

 2021 DEC NZ MEMBERSHIPS /$7,550 

 2021 NOV FUNBUNDLE DEPOSIT/$1,972 

 MEMBERSHIP CAMPAIGN- Since May 28th-Dec we have sold 571 Niabi Zoo Memberships. Our 

goal is to sell 1200 total by May 28, 2022. We need to sell 629 more and we are around 47% 

towards our goal.  

 Early bird pricing ($15 off) for Zooseum is happening now-$110 until Jan 1st.  

 Dec 1-15 ran an FB ad promoting gift memberships 

ADOPTS: 

 2021 DEC/$285 

 Advertising adopts in Eblasts and FB post for holiday gift giving 

CAROUSEL: 

 Closed and winterized  

GIFT CARDS/EGIFT CARDS: 

 2021 DEC/$1050 

 Advertising gift cards in eblasts and FB post for holiday gift giving 

 Dec 15-25 ran an FB ad promoting gift cards 

SCOOTERBUG: 

 Working on getting the new logo on all of the strollers and wheelchairs during the off season 

EVENTS/FUNDRAISER FOR PAINTED WILD DOGS: 

 Online Apparel Fundraising Store is up and running in partnership with Classical Graphics. It 

closed on Dec 5th.  

 
 
 

77



Education 

 12/2,4,9,11 – Joel Vanderbush taught ZOOL 585, Biological Studies in Zoos and Aquaria for WIU 
Zoo and Aquarium Studies program. Virtual class – Thursdays 2-4pm and in-person at Zoo 
Saturdays 9am-12pm from Oct. 21 – Dec. 11.  

o See Syllabus for coursework 

 12/7 – Guest speaker at Moline Kiwanis Club – Presented Painted Dog Campaign – 40 
participants 

 12/17 – Mascot appearance at QC Storm Hockey game – Joel escorted Niabi Bobbi 

 Content development for Painted Dogs educational graphics  

 Content development for Prairie Plant/Pollinator Graphics funded by Pauline Malchodi 

Memorial Fund. 

Development 
 

 12/6 – Met with Carver Charitable Trust to discuss grant and master plan. Invited to submit 

application by Dec. 15 for consideration in January 2022.  

 12/15 – submitted grant application for $160,000 to Carver Charitable Trust 

 12/16 – submitted grant application for $5000 to Dorothy and Bud Lundahl Charitable Trust for 

Rhino Scale 

 12/17 – printing of Painted Dog campaign brochures complete. Nearly 4000 brochures mailed  

 Received 2 grants through NZFP Foundation 

o $1500 from Enterprise Holdings Foundation for Painted Dog Campaign 

o $6000 from Dorothy and Bud Lundahl Charitable Trust for Rhino Scale 

 Received $11,000 from Niabi Zoological Society 

 12/12 - Auction concluded – scheduled pick up/delivery for all auction items 

Collected  $17,240.94 

Fees $1,021.13 

Gross $16,219.81 

Item cost $7,623.00 

Net $8,596.81 

 12/13 – Attended NZFP Foundation Meeting 

 12/22 – Launched Painted Dog peer-to-peer fundraising campaign and sent email to 22,085 people 

 
 
 
Donations  

Institutional Development - 2021 December 

Designation Donors Amount 

General Donation 6 $450.00 

Membership Gifts 1 $35.00 

Adopt 6 $285.00 

Corporate Match 1 $41.66 

Rhino 1 $10.00 

Painted Dog 40 $9,822.00 

Peer to Peer 8 $495.00 

78



Auction 5 $8,596.81 

Merchandise 1 $344.00 

Scavenger Hunt/Cards 3 $15.00 

Grants 3 $18,500.00 

  124 $38,594.47 

Painted Dog Campaign Total as of 12/31/21 = $21,502.81 
 
 
Volunteers 

Volunteer 
Type 

Dec 2021  
Hours 

Volunteer 
Count 

Adult 181.97 12 

Intern 42.63 1 

Junior Zoo Keeper 24.00 1 

Special Event 40.75 7 

Grand total 289.35 21 

Paid FTE/hour $16.46   

Value $4,762.70   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

    

    

    

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

79



80



81



82



83



84


	FP Cash BalancesDec21.pdf
	FY 21 22




